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City of flinion 

October 1, 2010 

500 EAST LOCUST STREET 

UNION, MISSOURI 63084 
PHONE: 636-583-3600 

FAX: 636-583-4091 

To the Honorable Mayor, Board of Aldennen, City Administrator, and Citizens of Union: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Union, Missouri (the City) 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 is hereby submitted. The report consists of manage­
ment's representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently, management assumes 
full responsibility for the cOlnpleteness and reliability of all of the infonnation presented in this 
report based upon a cOlnprehensive frmnework of internal control that it has been established for 
this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the ob­
jective is to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statelnents are 
free of any Inaterial n1isstatelnents. 

The City's financial statelnents have been audited by Hochschild, Blooln & Company LLP, a 
finn of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of this independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the basic financial statelnents of the City for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2010, are free of material misstatements. The independent auditors concluded, based 
upon its audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the 
City's financial statelnents for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, are fairly presented in con­
fonnity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The independent auditors' 
report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 

The City is required to have a "Single Audit" in conformity with the provisions of the Single 
Audit Act of 1984 and the United States Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. The 
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only 
on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited governlnent's internal 
controls and con1pliance with legal requirelnents involving the adlninistration of federal awards. 
Information related to this Single Audit is available in the City'S separately issued Single Audit 
Report. 

GAAP requires that managelnent provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to ac­
company the basic financial statements in the form of t-v1anagement's Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to cOlnpliment the MD&A and should be read in 
conjunction with it. The City's MD&P1. can be found ilnmediately following the independent 
audi tors' report. 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: 

.. The Introductory section, which is unaudited, includes this letter of translnittal, an orga­
nizational chart, and a list of the City's principal elected officials and other City officials. 



• The Financial section includes the independent auditors' report, Management's Discus­
sion and Analysis, basic financial statements for the City, and required additional sup­
pielnentary infon11ation. 

• The Statistical section includes selected financial and delTIographic infonnation, gener­
ally presented on a multi-year basis. 

Profile of the Government 

Incorporated in 1888, the City is the County Seat and the second largest City in Franklin County. 
The City covers approxilnately 8 square Iniles and has approxilnately 9,326 residents. The City 
is located 45 Ininutes southwest of the City of st. Louis, Missouri. The City is located in Frank­
lin County with easy access to Interstate Highway 44. 

The City is a fourth class city and is governed under the Mayor - Aldennen - City AdIninistrator 
fonn of government. The legislative body is comprised of the Mayor and eight IneInbers Board 
of Aldennen. Two aldennen are elected from each of the City's four wards to serve two year 
tenns, one half of which expires annually. The Mayor is elected to serve a four-year tenn. 

The City provides a range of services, including police protection; the construction and mainten­
ance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; and recreational activities. Sanitation ser­
vices, sewer, and water are derived from revenues froln user fees. 

The annual budget serves as a foundation for the City's financial planning and control. All of the 
departlnents of the City are required to submit requests for appropriation to the Finance Officer 
who uses these requests as a starting point for developInent of a proposed budget. The Finance 
Officer and City Adlninistrator present a proposed budget to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
who hold work sessions prior to adopting a budget by June 30. The budget is prepared by fund, 
broken down further by departInent, progrmns, or projects within the departlnent, then object of 
expenditures within progratns and finally, line items within the objects. Transfers of appropria­
tions between departments, however, require approval of the board. Budget-to-actual compari­
sons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriate 
am1ual budget has been adopted. For the General Fund, Park Fund, and Transpoliation Tax 
Fund, the cOInparison is presented on required supplemental infonnation. For other govermnen­
tal funds that have an adopted budget, con1parison schedules are found in other suppielnental in­
fonnation. 

Local Economy 

Once a sleepy rural town 45 minutes southwest of st. Louis, over the past 9 years the City has 
experienced unprecedented growth in the residential, comlnercial, and industrial sectors provid­
ing a diversified and stable econon1y. 

Residential growth has been spurred by a low cost of living, proxilnity to St. Louis County and 
overall quality of life. In addition to an award winning school district, the City is also home to 
East Central College, a cOlnmunity college of approxiInately 4,000 students. The college also 
offers continuing education courses and cultural opportunities (opera, theatre, art shows, athlet­
ics, etc.) of a much larger community. 
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With the addition of a large nUlnber of homes, cOlnmercial growth has occurred throughout the 
City. Commercial growth has also occurred due to Franklin County Governlnent investing over 
$12 Inillion in the downtown area within the past 4 years with the construction of a Governlnent 
Center and Judicial Center. 

In addition to being the County Seat, the City, like the rest of the country, and world, has expe­
rienced an econolnic downturn over the past year. Although several local industries decreased 
their labor force through layoffs and attrition, the City has been fortunate that a couple of large 
industries, American Plastics and Spartan Showcase, have weathered the recession quite well and 
have actually increased their employtnent. The early part of 2010 looks to be prOlnising with 
Esselte, our largest employer, 450, increasing elnploYlnent by up to 60 people. Also, industrial 
prospect activity has seen a lnarked increase in the second quarter of 2010 hopefully setting the 
stage for a slow but steady improvelnent in our local economy. 

Since 2007, the City has experienced a slow but steady decrease in sales tax of approximately 
2%. The City is confident and has evaluated its position and has made certain changes in its 
budget. In addition, the City lnaintains a conservative approach in spending and anticipates 
SOlne econolnic recovery in the next fiscal year or two. 

Major Initiatives 

A comlnittee cOlnprised of citizen volunteers, council melnbers, and administrative staff is pre­
paring a catnpaign for a Park Sales Tax. This sales tax is to develop a park east of town to in­
clude public fishing access, consttuction of picnic facilities, trails, sport fields, and other ameni­
ties. On the April 2011 ballet, voters will be asked to approve a Y2 cent sales tax for the devel­
oplnent of the park. Staff is currently researching other funding options which Inay include 
available grant progratns. 

Long-term Financial Planning 

The City's new comprehensive plan is almost finished. This new plan will assist the City in de­
tenllining our course of action for years to COlne. 

Although the Board of Aldennen has not fonnally adopted a long-tenn financial plan, adlninis­
tration does establish strategic goals and objectives for long-range planning purposes. 

The City is currently expanding the East Delunark Wastewater Treattnent Plant, Highway 47 lift 
station, and extending the sewer line and removing a lift station at Strawberry Fields. The City is 
issuing Recovery Zone Econolnic Development Bonds in the amount of $3,655,000 and $50,000 
in Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds for the projects. 

All telecolnmunication lawsuits except for Charter have been settled. The franchise user fees 
continue to increase at a modest rate which stabilized the decrease in sales tax. 
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Awards and Acknowledgments 

The Goven1n1ent Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in financial reporting to the City for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2009. This is the first year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be 
awarded a Celiificate of Achievelnent, a govenlment lTIUSt publish an easily readable and effi­
ciently organized CAFR. This report n1ust satisfy both U.S~ GAAP and applicable legal re­
quirernents. 

The Celiificate of Achievelnent is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our cur­
rent CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievelnent Progrmn's requirements and we are 
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedi­
cated services of the entire staff of the various departments of the City. We would like to ex­
press our appreciation to all melnbers of the various departlnents who assisted and contributed to 
the preparation. The assistance and recommendations in the preparation of this report from the 
City's independent certified public ~ccountants, Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP, is greatly 
appreciated. We would also like to thank the Mayor and Board of Aldermen for their interest 
and support in planning and conducting the financial operation of the City in a responsible and 
progressive lnanner. 

Respectively sublnitted, 

/l 

City Adlninistrator 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

October 1,2010 

Honorable Mayor and the Board of Aldermen 
CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate relnaining fund information of the CITY OF 
UNION, MISSOURI (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise 
the City's financial statelnents as listed in the accolnpanying table of contents. These financial state­
ments are the responsibility of the City's managelnent. Our responsibility is to express opinions on 
these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the COlnptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea­
sonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of Inaterial misstatelnent. An audit 
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit proce­
dures that are appropriate in the circulnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes exmnining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo­
sures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by Inanagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statelnents referred to above present fairly, in allinaterial respects, the re­
spective financial position of the govermnental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate relnaining fund information as of June 30,2010, and the respective changes in finan­
cial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance \vith Goverrllnent Auditing Standards, \ve have also issued a report dated October 1, 2010, 
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its com­
pliance with certain provision of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 



reporting and conlpliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on conlpliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and itnportant for assessing the results of our audit. 

The managenlent's discussion and analysis and required supplemental infonnation, as listed in the table 
of contents, are not a required part of the financial statelnents but are supplelnentary infonnation re-
quired by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Vie have applied linlited procedures, 
which consisted principally of inquiries of Inanagelnent regarding the Inethods of measurelnent and 
presentation of the required supplelnentary infonnation. However, we did not audit the information and 
express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that collec­
tively comprise the City's basic financial statelnents. The other supplemental infonnation, as listed in 
the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the fi­
nancial statelnents. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statelnents and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in a111naterial respects in relation to the 
basic financial statelnents taken as a whole. 

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and, there­
fore, express no opinion thereon. 

~~/~c4-~~Lcf 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS f . 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FORTHEYEARENDEDJUNE30,2010 

This section of the City of Union, ~vfissouri's (the City) annual financial report presents our review of 
the City's financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30,2010. We encourage readers to 
consider the infon11ation presented here in conjunction with the transinittalletter at the front of this re­
port and the City's financial statements, which follows this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• On a government-wide basis the assets of the City exceeded its liabilities for the Inost recent fis­
cal year by $42,691,842. The City has unrestricted net assets totaling $7,527,625. 

• General revenues and transfers for governmental activities were $5,762,661 which included 
$4,997,606 (86.7%) in sales, property, franchise, and other taxes. Property taxes accounted for 
$1,056,084 (18.3%) of general revenues and transfers. 

• Expenses from the various functions of governmental activities was $6,169,472. General gov­
emInent was $1,570,872 (25.5%), public safety was $1,449,950 (23.5%), street was $1,229,372 
(19.9%), refuse collection and other was $592,645 (9.6%), culture and recreation was $769,928 
(12.5%), planning and development was $438,776 (7.1 %), and building maintenance was 
$89,991 (1.5%). 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's govenunental funds reported cOI11bined end­
ing fund balances of$7,664,130, an increase of$42,875 in cOlnparison with the prior year. Of 
this mnount $7,271,054 is available for spending at the City's discretion. 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was 
$6,000,991 or 93% of total General Fund expenditures. 

• The City's total debt decreased by $1,295,375 (22%) during the current fiscal year. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statel11ents. The City's 
basic financial stateinents consist of three cOlnponents: 1) government-wide financial statel11ents, 2) 
fund financial stateinents, and 3) notes to the basic financial statel11ents. This report also contains re­
quired supplel11ental infonnation and other suppieinental information. 

Government-wide financial statements. The governl11ent-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a I11anner sitnilar to a private-sector 
business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the differ­
ence between the two reported as net assets. Over titne, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as 
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is itnproving or deteriorating. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

__________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

The statelnent of activities presents information showing hovv the City's net assets changed during the 
Inost recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise 
to the change occurs, regardless of the tilning of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are 
repolied in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flo\vs in future fiscal periods (e.g., 
uncollected taxes and accrued vacation leave). 

The govermnent-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally sup­
ported by taxes and intergovermnental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). The govermnental activities of the City include general government, public safety, street, 
refuse collection and other, culture and recreation, planning and deveiopinent, and building mainte­
nance. 

The business-type activities of the City include water and sewer. 

The govermnent-wide financial stateinents can be found on pages 14 and 15 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to Inaintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state 
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate cOlnpliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governinental funds 
and proprietary funds. It should be noted that the City does not have any fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the Saine functions re­
ported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial stateinents, govermnental funds financial statements focus on near-term in­
flows and outflows of expendable resources as well as on balances of expendable resources available at 
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the City'S near-term financing 
requireinents. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govermnent-wide financial state­
ments, it is useful to COlnpare the information presented for govermnental funds with similar infonnation 
presented for govermnental activities in the goveminent-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers 
n1ay better understand the long-tenn impact of the City's near-term financial decisions. Both the gov­
ernmental funds balance sheet and the govermnental funds stateinent of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this cOlnparison between govenunental 
funds and the govermnent-wide governmental activities. 

The City Inaintains several individual governinental funds. Infonnation is presented separately in the 
govermnental funds balance sheet and in the goveminental funds statements of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Park Fund, and Transportation Tax Fund, all of 
which are considered to be Inajor funds. Data froin the other govelTIlnental funds are cOlnbined into a 
single, aggregated presentation called "other governinental funds". Individual fund data for each of 
these nonn1ajor govermnental funds is provided in the fonn of combining statements in the other sup­
plemental information section in this report. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~_FORTHEYEARENDEDJUNE30,2010 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds. Budgetary cOll1parisoll 
staten1ents have been provided for all budgeted funds to delnonstrate legal cOlnpliance with the respec­
tive adopted budget. 

The govermnental funds financial statelnents can be found on pages 16 through 19 of this report. 

Proprietary funds. The City lnaintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are 
used to report the Salne functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statelnents. The City uses Enterprise Funds to account for its water and sewer operations. Proprietary 
funds provide the san1e type of information as the government-wide financial statelnents, only in more 
detail. The proprietary fund financial statelnents provide separate infonnation for the water and sewer 
operations. 

The proprietary fund financial statelnents can be found on pages 20 through 22 of this report. 

Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full un­
derstanding of the data provided in the governlnent-wide and fund financial statelnents. The notes to the 
financial statelnents can be found on pages 23 through 39 of this report. 

Required supplemental information. In addition to the basic financial staten1ents and accolnpanying 
notes, certain required supplelnental infonnation can be found on pages 41 through 47 of this report. 

Other supplemental information. The con1bining and individual fund statelnents, refen~ed to earlier in 
connection with nomnajor govennnental funds, are presented imlnediately following the required sup­
plelnental infonnation. Combining and individual fund statelnents and schedules can be found on pages 
49 through 55 of this repoli. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE 
CITY AS A WHOLE 

The City presents its financial statements under the reporting lnodel required by the Governmental Ac­
counting Standards Board Statelnent No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial Statements - and Manage­
ment's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments. Therefore, a cOlnparative analysis 
of govenllnent-wide data is also included in this report. 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over tilne as a useful indicator of a go v enllnent, s financial posi­
tion. In the case of the City, the net assets of $42,691 ,842 increased in 2010 by approxilnately 8.4% as 
cOlnpared to the previous year. 

The largest portion of the City's net assets, $32,716,946 in 2010 (an increase ofapproxiluately 10.40/0 
froln 2009), reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, lnachinery and equipment, and 
infrastructure) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses 
these capital assets to provide services to citizens. Consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. Although the City's investlnent in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
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CITY OF UNION., MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

noted that the resources needed to repay this debt Inust be provided frOlll other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

A condensed version of the statelnent of net assets follov/s: 

June 30 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

ASSETS 
Current and other 

assets $ 8,265,360 8,345,416 2,646,251 2,465,673 10,911,611 10,811,089 
Capital assets, 
net 16)21)46 15)11~024 20.950~988 20)73)14 37~272~334 35A84 l 138 

Total 
Assets 24,586,706 23,456,440 23,597,239 22,838,787 48,183,945 46,295,227 

LIABILITIES 
Long-tenn lia-
bilities 122,881 1,221,244 4,573,075 4,757,826 4,695,956 5,979,070 

Other liabilities 490)54 586~054 305~993 351)02 796~147 937)56 
Total 

Liabilities 613,035 1,807,298 4,879,068 5,109,128 5,492,103 6,916,426 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital 

assets, net of re-
lated debt 16,321,346 14,001,754 16,395,600 15,633,177 32,716,946 29,634,931 

Restricted 1,531,227 1,947,624 916,044 1,215,391 2,447,271 3,163,015 
U nrestri cted 6,121,098 5,699,764 1,406,527 881,091 7,527,625 6,580,855 

Total Net 
Assets $23~973~671 18J18~171 17J29~659 39~378~801 

An additional portion of the City's net assets, $2,447,271 in 2010, represents resources that are subject 
to external restrictions on how they may be used. External restrictions include those imposed by gran­
tors, contributors, regulations of other govermnents, or restrictions ilnposed by law through constitu­
tional provisions or legislation. 

The relnaining category of the City's net assets represents an unrestricted net assets balance of 
$7,527,625 in 2010 which maybe used to Ineet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

A condensed version of the statelnent of activities follows: 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

For The Years Ended June 30 
Governmental Business-type 

Total 
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

REVENUES 
Program revenues: 

Charges for 
services $ 1,148,720 1,013,869 1,783,723 1,810,401 2,932,443 2,824,270 

Operating grants 
and contributions 383,815 426,906 383,815 426,906 

Capital grants and 
contributions 1,198,805 508,810 229,045 58,120 1,427,850 566,930 

General revenues: 
Taxes 4,997,606 4,986,293 775,930 792,580 5,773,536 5,778,873 
Investment income 139,420 196,484 46,675 45,092 186,095 241,576 
Gain on sale 1,625 94,746 1,625 94,746 
Rental income 71,911 71,911 
Miscellaneous 624~010 454~700 64~517 29~317 688~527 484~017 

Total Revenues 8,494,001 7,753,719 2,899,890 2,735,510 11 ,393,891 10,489,229 

EXPENSES 
General government 1,570,872 1,512,762 1,570,872 1,512,762 
Public safety 1,449,950 1,495,039 1,449,950 1,495,039 
Street department 1,229,372 1,696,109 1,229,372 1,696,109 
Refuse collection and 

other 592,645 512,651 592,645 512,651 
Culture and recreation 769,928 748,890 769,928 748,890 
Planning and develop-

ment 438,776 405,875 438,776 405,875 
Building maintenance 89,991 100,942 89,991 100,942 
Interest and fiscal 

charges 27,938 327,304 27,938 327,304 
Water/sewer 1~911,378 1~994,739 1,911,378 1~994,739 

Total Expenses 6,169,472 6,799,572 1,911,378 1,994,739 8,080,850 8,794,311 

TRANSFERS (338,600) 338,600 

CHANGES IN NET 
ASSETS 2,324,529 615,547 988,512 1,079,371 3,313,041 1,694,918 

NET ASSETS, mL Y 1 21,033,595 17,729,659 39,378,801 37,683,883 

NET ASSETS, 
JUNE 30 21!649!142 18!718!171 42!691!842 39!378!801 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FORTHEYEARENDEDJUNE30,2010 

Re-venues by Source- COlnparison 
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Cap ital €,.'T'ants 

CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FORTHEYEARENDEDJUNE30,2010. 

I<.evenues by Sources for FiSC~ll Ye..ll" 2010 

Gain on sale $1,625 

Inv e .sttnent in corne 
$186,09 5 

p e rating 
grants 

$ 383 ,8 15 

$1,427,85 0 
Taxes $5,773536 

Expenses by Function for FisGll Year 2010 
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other $:;92,645 

$1,570,ff72 

Page 9 



CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

__________________ FORTHEYEARENDEDIDNE30,2010 

Changes in net assets. In 201 ° the City's total revenues on the government-wide basis was 
$11,393,891, an increase of $904,662 as compared to 2009. 

\Vhile the total revenues increased $904,662 (8.6%) from last year, total expenses also decreased by 
$713,461 (8.1 %) from last year. The increase in revenues was due to the increase of grant monies from 
road projects. The decrease in expenses was due to less road repairs. As a result, the change in net as­
sets had an increase of$1,618,123 (95.5%). 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY"S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. You can think of the City's net assets (the difference between assets and lia­
bilities) as one way to measure the City's financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteri­
orating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial factors such as changes in the City's property tax 
base, the amount of snow during the winter seasons, etc., to assess the overall health of the City. 

General Fund. At the end of year 2010, the unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was 
$6,000,991 while the total fund balance was $6,132,903. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, 
it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expendi­
tures and transfer out. Unreserved fund balance represents (88.7%) of total General Fund expenditures 
and transfers out of$319,500, while total fund balance represents (90.7%) of total General Fund expen­
ditures and transfers out. 

The fund balance in the City's General Fund increased by $459,272 (8.1 %) froln the prior year fund bal­
ance. The changes of the current year's fund balance are mainly due to: 

• Revenues increased by $739,437 due to grants for road projects. 

Other major governmental funds. Changes in fund balances for other major governmental funds can 
be described as follows: 

• Park Fund decreased by $462,051. This decrease was a result of a paying off the debt for the 
east park property. At the end of June 30, 2010, the unreserved fund balance was $23,986 and 
total fund balance was $57,648. 

• Transportation Tax Fund increased by $41,090. This increase was a result ofa decreased trans­
fer out to the General Fund. At the end of June 30,2010, the unreserved fund balance and total 
fund balance was $725,344. 

Proprietary funds. Changes in net assets for the major proprietary funds can be described as follows: 

• Water and Sewer Fund increased $988,512. This increase was a result of increasing revenues. 
At the end of June 30, 2010, total net assets was $18,718,171. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

__________________ FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Final results for any given year will generally differ froln that year's adopted budget. The final revised 
budget of the City's General Fund for 2010 was $6,570,609, which differs froln the original adopted 
budget of$6,915,932 by $345,323. These suppielnental appropriations are sUInlnarized as follows: 

.. Areas of decrease in the General Fund includes road projects not being cOInpleted in the 2009-
2010 budget year. 

.. Areas of increase in the General Fund include pay raises, eInployee benefits, fuel, and insurance. 

CAPIT AL ASSETS 

The City has invested in a broad range of capital assets, including roads, buildings, machinery and 
equiplnent, water and sewer lines, and automobiles and trucks. With the implen1entation of GASB 34, 
the City adopted a Capital Assets Policy setting a capital asset alnount of $2,500 or greater with an esti­
mated life of at least two years to be itnpielnented. The City has elected not to retroactively report infra­
structure constructed prior to July 1, 2003. Capital assets, net of depreciation were as follows: 

Land 
Construction in 

progress 
Buildings 
Infrastructure 
Machinery and 

equipInent 

June 30 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities 
2010 2009 2010 2009 

$ 2,106,032 2,106,032 574,708 574,708 

585,548 693,437 1,042,800 1,432,478 
979,642 1,057,586 141,748 147,221 

11,825,635 10,349,417 17,133,612 16,154,323 

824,489 2,058,120 2,064,384 

$16~32l ~346 20~950~988 20~373) 14 

Total 
2010 2009 

2,680,740 2,680,740 

1,628,348 2,125,915 
1,121,390 1,204,807 

28,959,247 26,503,740 

2,882,609 2,968,936 

35~484~138 

Additional infonnation on the City's capital assets can be found in Note C in the notes to the basic fi­
nancial statelnents. 

LONG-TERrw DEBT 

At the end of the fiscal year 2010, the City had outstanding long-term debt obligations for governmental 
and business-type activities in the atnount of $4,580,294 cOlnpared to $5,875,669 in fiscal year 2009. 
Of this amount, $3,770,000 is certificates of patiicipation and $810,294 in capital leases. The 
$1,295,375 decrease in the City's long-tenn debt obligations is primarily due to the City paying off 
$1,095,250 loan payable for land. Additionally, the City did not refund any debts during 2010. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~_FORTHEYEARENDEDJUNE30,2010 

The City's govenl1nental and business-type activities debt is detailed below: 

2006A certificates 
of participation $ 

Loan payable 
Capitallease obli-

gations 

$ 

June 30 
Governmental 

Activities 
2010 2009 

1,095,250 

Business-ripe 
Activities 

2010 2009 

3,770,000 3,910,000 

810294 856,399 

4~580~294 4~766~399 

Total 
2010 209 

3,770,000 3,910,000 
1,095,250 

810,294 870,419 

5~875~669 

Additional infonnation on the City's 10ng-tenn debt can be found in Note F in the notes to the basic fi­
nancial stateinents. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

During the preparation of the budget for the ensuring fiscal year, the City took into consideration the 
current econoinic conditions. Following are the assUlnptions Inade in preparing the City's budget for the 
2010 - 2011 fiscal year: 

It Sales tax being flat 
It Health insurance preIniuIn increase 
.. Construction related revenues to be down slightly 
It Reduction in state and federal nl0nies 
It Increase in property tax rate 
It Low interest rates 

Thc City is working on plans to Inake itnprovenlents to the East Denlnark Wastewater Treatlnent Plant, 
Highway 47 lift station, and extend sewer line and reI nove lift station at Strawberry Fields, with an esti­
Inated cost of$3,705,000, to Ineet the delnands caused by growth on the east side of the City. The lift 
station will eliininate the need for a lagoon serving existing custolners in the area and to prepare for fu­
ture growth. The source of funding for these projects is through Recovery Zone Econolnic Development 
Bonds and Taxable COlnbined Waterworks and Sewerage Systeln Revenue Bonds. 

The City is currently working on a new comprehensive plan. This plan will be fonnally adopted by the 
Board of Aldennen to heip vvith long-range planning purposes to accomplish goals and objectives for 
the City. Although the Board of Aldennen has not fonnally adopted a long-tenn financial plan, admin­
istration does establish strategic goals and objectives for long-range planning purposes. 
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REQUESTS FOR II'"~FORMATIOr~ 

CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with 
an interest. Questions concerning any of the infonnation provided in this report or requests for addi­
tional financial infonnation should be addressed to the Finance Officer, 500 East Locust Street, Union, 
MO 63084. 

Page 13 



CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

30,2010 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments (i' 5,826,267 406,930 6,233,197 ..p 

Accounts receivable 649,461 382,139 1,031,600 
Property taxes receivable, net of allowance 86,994 86,994 
Court fines receivable 30,642 30,642 
Grants receivable 915,712 915,712 
Accrued interest receivable 4,067 4,067 
Inventory 124,293 124,293 
Prepaid items 165,574 87,738 253,312 
Bond issue costs 108,761 108,761 
Restricted assets: 

Cash 586,643 1,536,390 2,123,033 
Capital assets: 

Land and construction in progress 2,691,580 1,617,508 4,309,088 
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 13,629,766 19,333,480 32,963,246 

Total Assets 24,586,706 23,597,239 48,183,945 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 367,267 82,711 449,978 
Retainage payable 25,953 25,953 
Accrued wages 78,441 11,317 89,758 
Accrued expenses 8,840 28,916 37,756 
Accrued interest payable 106,619 106,619 
Customer deposits payable 76,430 76,430 
Court bonds payable 9,653 9,653 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 92,161 211,829 303,990 
Due in more than one year 30,720 4,391,966 

Total Liabilities 613,035 4,879,068 5,492,103 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 16,321,346 16,395,600 32,716,946 
Restricted for: 

Park itnprovelnents 57,648 57,648 
Street improvements 725,344 725,344 
Cemetery maintenance 65,853 65,853 
Stonnwater itnprovements 79,850 79,850 
Water and sewer improvements 670,994 670,994 
Debt service 602,532 245,050 847,582 

Unrestricted 6,121,098 1,406,527 7,527,625 

Total Net Assets $ 23,973,671 71 42,691,842 

See notes to financial staterneIHs ____________________________ _ 
Page 14 



FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 
Primary Government 

Governmental Activities 
General govermnent 
Public safety 
Street department 
Refuse collection and other 
Culture and recreation 
Plcmn;na and development 
UUllUll1b lnaintenance 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total Govenunental Activities 

Business-type Activities 
Water/sewer 

Total Primary Government 

General Revenues 
Taxes: 

Sales 
Property 
Franchise 
Other 

Investment income 
Gain on sale of assets 
Miscellaneous 

Total General Revenues 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, JULY 1 

NET ASSETS, JUNE 30 

See notes to financial statements 

Expenses 

$ 1,570,872 
1,449,950 
1,229,372 

592,645 
769,928 
438,776 

89,991 
27,938 

6,169,472 

1,911,378 
$ 8,080,850 

Program Reven1llles 
Operating Capital 

Charges For Grants And Grants And 
Services Contributions Contributions 

129,462 
192,358 89,217 14,194 

5,105 292,733 1,184,611 
603,578 
217,506 1,865 

711 

1,148,720 383,815 1,198,805 

1,783,723 229,045 
2,932,443 1,427,850 

CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
ST ATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Net Revenues (Expenses) And 
Chang~s In Net Assets 
Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

(1,441,410) (1,441,410) 
(1,154,181) (1,154,181) 

253,077 253,077 
10,933 10,933 

(550,557) (550,557) 
(438,065) (438,065) 

(89,991) (89,991) 
(27,938) (27,938) 

(3,438, l32) (3,438, l32) 

101,390 101,390 
(3,438,l32) 101,390 (3,336,742) 

2,327,690 775,930 3,103,620 
1,056,084 1,056,084 
1,338,241 1,338,241 

275,591 275,591 
139,420 46,675 186,095 

1,625 1,625 
624,010 64,517 688,527 

5,762,661 887,122 6,649,783 

2,324,529 988,512 3,313,041 

21,649,142 17,729,659 39,378,801 

$ 23,973,671 18,718,171 42,691,842 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
BALANCESHEET-GOVERNMENTALFUNDS 

30,2010 

Other Total 
General Transportation Governmental Governmental 

Fund Park Fund Tax Fund Funds Funds 
ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 4,975,444 29,586 595,638 225,599 5,826,267 
Accounts receivable 519,755 129,706 649,461 
Property taxes receivable, net 

of allowance 70,583 16,411 86,994 
Couli fines receivable 30,642 30,642 
Grants receivable 915,712 915,712 
Accrued interest receivable 4,067 4,067 
Prepaid items 131,912 33,662 165,574 
Restricted assets: 

Cash 54,354 522,636 586,643 

Total Assets 134,013 725,344 748,235 8,265,360 

LIABILITIES AND FUND 
BALANCES 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 328,956 38,311 367,267 
Retainage payable 25,953 25,953 
Wages payable 58,477 19,964 78,441 
Court bonds payable 9,653 9,653 
Accrued liabilities 5,228 3,612 8,840 
Deferred revenue 14,478 111,076 

Total Liabilities 76,365 601,230 

Fund Balances 
Reserved for: 

Prepaid items 131,912 33,662 165,574 
Debt service 227,502 227,502 

Unreserved: 
General Fund 6,000,991 6,000,991 
Special Revenue Funds 23,986 725,344 145,703 895,033 
Debt Service Funds 375,030 375,030 

Total Fund Balances 6,132,903 57,648 725,344 7,664,130 

Total Liabilities And 
Fund Balances 134,013 725,344 8,265,360 

See notes to financial staterneJlts _________________________________ _ 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
30,2010 

Total Fund Balances - Governnlental Funds 

Aillounts repolied for governlnental activities in the statelnent of net assets 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in govenl1nental activities are not financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported in the govenl1nental funds. The cost of the assets 
is $21,290,253 and the acculnulated depreciation is $4,968,907. 

Other long-tenn assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures 
and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds. 

Certain long-tenn liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not repolied as liabilities in the governmental funds. Long­
tenll liabilities at year-end consist of: 
COlllpensated absences 

Total Net Assets Of Govenl1nental Activities 

See notes to financial .;:JIlUIl'lo.-JLllll'-'JLll 

$ 7,664,130 

16,321,346 

111,076 

(122,881 ) 

$ 23,973,671 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Other Total 
General Transportation Governmental Governmental 

Fund Park Fund Tax Fund Funds Funds 
REVENUES 

Taxes $ 4,307,702 241,381 775,897 5,324,980 
Fines and forfeitures 112,758 112,758 
Licenses and permits 90,640 90,640 
Charges for services 658,708 207,193 865,901 
Intergovernmental 1,124,971 1,124,971 
Investment income 104,986 13,377 15,193 5,864 139,420 
Rental income 36,701 36,701 
Miscellaneous 623,229 659,360 

Total Revenues 1,085,180 791,090 8,354,731 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 1,570,176 1,570,176 
Public safety 1,363,023 1,363,023 
Street department 720,193 720,193 
Refuse collection and other 592,645 592,645 
Culture and recreation 682,274 682,274 
Planning and development 285,952 285,952 
Building maintenance 72,569 72,569 

Capital outlay 1,840,892 64,194 1,905,086 
Debt service: 

Principal 1,095,250 1,095,250 
Interest and fiscal charges 25,013 27,938 

Total Expenditures 6,445,450 1,866,731 8,315,106 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (781,551 ) 791,090 39,625 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
(USES) 
Sale of capital assets 1,625 1,625 3,250 
Transfers in 750,000 319,500 1,069,500 
Transfers out (319,500) (750,000) (1,069,500) 

Total Other 
Financing 
Sources (Uses) 319,500 (750,000) 3,250 

NET CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCES 459,272 (462,051) 41,090 4,564 42,875 

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 519,699 684,254 743,67] 7,621,255 

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 57,648 725,344 7,664,130 

See notes to financial statellllellts ________________________________ _ 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Net Change In Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for govenll11ental activities in the statement of activities are different 
because: 

Capital outlays are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the 
amount by which capital outlays over the capitalization threshold ($1,945,443) 
exceeded depreciation ($898,172) in the current period. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds. 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets: 
Contributed capital assets 

The issuance oflong-tenn debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial 
resources to the governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of 
long-tenn debt consumes the current financial resources of the govenlmental 
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. All the 
governmental funds report the effect of issuance cost, premiums, discounts, 
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are 
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the 
net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-tenn debt and 
related items. 
Repayments: 

Note payable 
Capital lease 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds 
financial statements, expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are 
not normally paid with expendable available financial resources. In the state­
ment of activities, however, which is presented on the accrual basis of ac­
counting, expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when financial 
resources are available. 
Accrued compensated absence liability 

Change In Net Assets Of Governmental Activities 

1,095,250 
14,020 

$ 42,875 

1,047,271 

(27,031 ) 

163,051 

1,109,270 

$ 2,324,529 

See notes to financial st2ltelmC2~nts _________________________________ _ 
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ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash investments 
Accounts receivable 
Inventory 
Prepaid items 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Bond issuance costs 
Cash - restricted 
Land and construction in progress 
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total Noncurrent Assets 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued wages 
Accrued expenses 
Accrued interest payable 
Accrued compensated absences - current 
Capital lease - current 
Debt payable - current 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Customer deposits payable 
Acclued compensated absences 
Capital leases payable 
Debt payable, net 

NET ASSETS 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Restricted for water and sewer improvements 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND 

30,2010 

Business-type 
Activities -

Enterprise Fund 
Water/Sewer 

$ 406,930 
382,139 
124,293 
87,738 

1,001,100 

108,761 
1,536,390 
1,617,508 

19,333,480 
22,596,139 
23,597,239 

82,711 
11,317 
28,916 

106,619 
13,265 
48,564 

150,000 
441,392 

76,430 
4,422 

761,730 
3,595,094 
4,437,676 
4,879,068 

16,395,600 
245,050 
670,994 

$ 18,718,171 

See notes to financial stalteJne]uts: ______________________________ _ 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN 

NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND 
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services: 

Water 
Sewer 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Depreciation 
Alnortizati 011 

Water 
Sewer 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING INCOME 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Taxes 
Investn1ent incolne 
Miscellaneous 
Interest expense 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, JULY 1 

30 

Business-type 
Activities -

Enterprise Fund 
WaterlSewer 

$ 1,010,291 
773,432 

1,783,723 

521,829 
8,353 

504,932 
642,698 

1,677,812 

105,911 

775,930 
46,675 
64,517 

(233,566) 
653,556 

759,467 

988,512 

17,729,659 

$ 1 71 

notes to JlAJl.JL, .... JlJL .. ,Jl".ll st:at"~n.1r~r .. t"''' ______________________ _ 
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INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

Cash flows provided by noncapital financing activities: 
Taxes 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Interest paid on bonds 
Payments on capital lease payable 
Payments on bonds payable 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 

CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -PROPRIETARY FUND 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010 

Business-type 
Activities -

Enterprise Fund 
Water/Sewer 

$ 1,791,361 
(630,151) 
(567,626) 
593,584 

775,930 

Net Cash Used In Capital And Related Financing Activities 

(234,075) 
(46,105) 

(140,000) 
(870,658) 

(l,290,838) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous income 

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Amortization 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid items 
Inventory 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Accrued wages 
Accrued compensated absences 
Accrued expenses 
Customer deposits 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

Contributed water and sewer lines 

46,675 
64,517 

111,192 

189,868 

1,753,452 

$ 1,943,320 

$ 105,911 

521,829 
8,353 

5,413 
6,778 

(9,698) 

(47,572) 
(5,712) 
1,793 
(202) 

4,466 

487,673 

$ 593,584 

$ 229,045 

See notes to financial statements _____________________________________ _ 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS --------------------------------------------

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI (the City) was incorporated under the provisions of the State of 
Missouri. The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of govenlinent. The City's major operations 
include public safety (police), streets, sanitation, culture, and recreation, public iinprovements, planning 
and developnlent, and general adininistrative services. Other services include utilities operations. 

The accounting and financial reporting policies of the City confonn to U.S. generally accepted account­
ing principles as applicable to governinental entities. The following is a SUlnmary of the nlore signifi­
cant policies: 

1. The Financial Reporting Entity 

The City defines its financial reporting entity in accordance with provisions established 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Such standards require in­
clusion of component units based upon whether the City's govenling body has any signif­
icant mnount of accountability for potential conlponent units. The City is the priInary 
governinent unit. Component units are those entities which are financially accountable to 
the primary goveminent, either because the City appoints a voting majority of the COIn­
ponent unit's Board or because the cOlnponent unit will provide a financial benefit or iIn­
pose a financial burden on the City. It was detennined that there are no component units 
to be included in the City's reporting entity. 

2. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The goveminent-wide financial stateinents (i.e., the stateinent of net assets and the state­
Inent of activities) report infonnation on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For 
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the statements. 
Govermnental activities, which nonnally are supported by taxes and intergoveminental 
revenues, are reported separately froin business-type activities, which rely to a significant 
extent on fees and charges for support. 

The stateinent of activities deinonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segtnent is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that 
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segtnent. Progrmn revenues include 1) 
charges to custoiners or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit froin goods, 
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segtnent and 2) grants and contri­
butions that are restricted to Ineeting the operational or capital requirements of a partic­
ular function or segtllent. Taxes and other iteins not properly included aInong progrmn 
revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for goverrunental funds and proprietary funds. 
Major individual goveminental funds and major individual Enterprise Funds are reported 
as separate colulnns in the fund financial statelnents. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The governn1ent-v/ide Ju .... u.J-."". staten1ents are reported eCOI101111C resources 

Ineasurelnent focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund finan­
cial statelnents. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the tilning of related cash flows. Property taxes are 
reco gnized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and silnilar items 
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirelnents ilnposed by the provider 
have been 111et. 

Goven11nental funds financial statelnents are reported using the current financial re­
sources Ineasurelnent focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized as soon as they are both Ineasurable and available. Revenues are considered 
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough there­
after to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues 
to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual ac­
counting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to COln­
pensated absences and clailns and judglnents, are recorded only when paYlnent is due 
(i.e., n1atured). 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as rev­
enues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue iten1s are considered to be Ineasur­
able and available only when cash is received by the City. 

The City reports the following Inajor govemlnental funds: 

General Fund -- This fund is the prilnary operating fund of the City. It is used to ac­
count for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

Park Fund -- This fund is a Special Revenue Fund used to account for taxes and park 
progrmns revenue and for activities related to the parks departn1ent. 

Transportation Tax -- This fund is a Special Revenue Fund used to account for 
gasoline excise and con1n1ercial vehicle taxes legally restricted street in1proven1ents. 

The City reports the following n1ajor proprietary fund: 

Water/Sewer Fund -- This fund is used to account for operations of the City's water and 
sewer depatin1ents. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
__________________ .NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to DeceInber 1, 
1989, generally are followed in both the govenlnlent-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of 
GASB. Govenllnents also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guid­
ance for their business-type activities and Enterprise Funds, subject to this same lilnita­
tion. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been elilninated froln the govern­
Inent-wide financial statenlents. Exceptions to this rule are payment-in-lieu of taxes and 
other charges and various other functions of the City. Elilnination of these charges would 
distort the direct costs and progrmn revenues reported for the various functions con­
cerned. 

Anlounts reported as progranl revenues include 1) charges to custolners or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) 
capital grants and contributions, including special asseSSInents. Internally dedicated re­
sources are reported as general revenues rather than as progrmn revenues. Likewise, 
general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses fronl nonoperating itelns. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result froln providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing opera­
tions. The principal operating revenues of the City's Enterprise Fund are charges for 
sales and services. Operating expenses for Enterprise Funds include the cost of sales and 
services, adIninistrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not Ineeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's pol­
icy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

4. Cash and Investments 

For cash flow statenlent purposes, the City considers all highly liquid debt instrUlnents 
purchased with a nlaturity of three Inonths or less to be cash equivalents. GASB State­
Inent No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments andfor Exter­
nal Investment Pools, requires that all investInents be reported in the financial statelnents 
at fair value. Fair value is established as readily deternlinable current Inarket value for 
equity and debt securities. State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the 
U.S. Treasury, federal agencies, conlmercial paper, corporate bonds, and repurchase 
agreelnents. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS --------------------------------------------

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

5. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 

Property taxes receivable are ShOVvH net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts of 
$30,534 and $6,703 in the General and Park Funds, respectively. 

6. Inventory 

Inventory in the proprietary fund are valued at cost (first-in, first-out) and the expense is 
recognized when inventory iteins are consumed in operations. 

7. Prepaid Items 

PaYlnents n1ade to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year­
end are recorded as prepaid itelTIs. Prepaid itelTIS are equally offset by a fund balance re­
serve which indicates that they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even 
though they are a cOlnponent of net cun-ent assets. 

8. Due To/From Other Funds 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing atTangelnents out­
standing at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/froln", are considered 
"available spendable resources", and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. 

9. Restricted Assets 

Certain resources set aside for the repaYlnent of utility custoiner deposits, couli bond de­
posits, and trustee accounts restricted for debt service are classified as restricted assets on 
the balance sheet because their use is limited to repaYlnent of deposits and debt service 
liabilities. 

10. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, equipinent, and infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and sitnilar iten1s), are reported in the applicable goven1n1ental or business­
type activities coluinns in the governinent-wide financial stateinents. Capital assets are 
defined by the City as assets with an initial cost of Inore than $2,500 or bettennents with 
a cost of Inore than $5,000 and an estirI1ated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets 
are recorded at historical cost or estitnated historical cost if purchased or constructed. 

Donated capital assets are recorded at estiinated fair Inarket value at the date of donation. 
Infrastructure acquired prior to the iinpleinentation of GASB 34 has not been reported. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

10. Capital Assets (Continued) 

The cost of nonnal1naintenance and repairs that do 110t add to 
n1aterially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

value of the asset or 

Depreciation is being cOlnputed on the straight-line Inethod, using asset lives as follows: 

Assets 

Buildings 
Infrastructure 
Machinery and equipn1ent 

11. Deferred Revenues 

Years 

20 - 50 
10 - 50 
3 - 25 

The City reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues 
arise when a potential revenue does not Ineet both the "lneasurable" and "available" crite­
ria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are 
received by the City before it has a legal clailn to then1. In subsequent periods, when 
both the revenue recognition criteria are n1et, or when the City has a legal clailn to the re­
sources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed fron1 the cOlnbined balance sheet 
and revenue is recognized. 

12. Conlpensated Absences 

City en1ployees generally earn vacation Inonthly based upon their length of service to the 
City. Regular full-tin1e elnployees who are separated frOln service are cOlnpensated for 
vacation accrued up to the date of separation. COlnp tilne accrued is also paid upon the 
date of separation. All vacation pay and COlnp tin1e is accrued when incurred in the gov­
emInent-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. Sick leave is accun1ulated based 
on length of service and is available only to provide cOlnpensation during periods of ill­
ness. No pOliion of sick leave is payable to the einployee upon ten11ination, therefore, no 
liability is reported for sick leave. 

13. Long-term Liabilities 

In the govemlnent-wide financial statelnents and proprietary fund types in the fund finan­
cial statements, long-tenn debt and other long-tenn obligations are reported as liabilities 
in the applicable governlnental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fbnd 
type stateinent of net assets. Bond preiniulns and discount, as well as issuance costs, are 
defen-ed and mnortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line Inethod. Bonds 
payable are repolied net of the applicable bond prelniuln or discount. Bond issuance 
costs are mnortized over the tenn of the related debt. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

13. Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 

In the fund financial statmnents, govemlnental fund types recognize bond pren1iulTIS and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the cunent period. The face mnoullt of 
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Prelniun1s received on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are repolied as 
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld froln the actual debt pro­
ceeds received, are repolied as debt service expenditures. Bonds are to be liquidated by 
the related fund. 

14. Reserved Fund Balance 

In the fund financial statements, goven11nental funds report reservations of fund balance 
for arllounts that are not available for subsequent year appropriations or are legally re­
stricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose, if any. 

15. Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments 

The City n1aintains the Inajority of its cash and investlnents in a pooled cash and invest­
n1ents account. As a control, the City also Inaintains separate accounting records for each 
fund, so that in the accon1panying financial statelnents, equity in pooled cash and invest­
n1ents reflects each fund's share of such accounts. 

16. Grant Revenue 

Resources received by the City frOln other goven11nents are accounted for within applica­
ble funds based on the purpose and requirelnents of each grant. Revenues are recognized 
on an accounting basis consistent with the fund's Ineasurement objective. 

Revenues related to expenditure-driven grants are recognized to the extent expenditures 
are incuned. Any excess or deficiency of grant revenues received cOlnpared to expendi­
tures incurred is recorded as defened revenue or alnounts receivable froln the grantor. 

17. Interfund Transactions 

In the fund financial staten1ents, the City has the following types of transactions mnong 
funds: 

Transfers -- Legally authorized transfers are reported when incurred as transfers in by 
the recipient fund and as transfers out by the disbursing fund. 

E1ilnination of interfund activity has been Inade for goven11nental activities in the gov­
ernlnent-wide financial statelnents. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~NOTESTOFINANCIALSTATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

18. Property Taxes 

Tlle City's pI"Operty ta)t~es are levied each September 1 based 011 the assessed valuation for 
all real and personal property located in the City as of the previous January 1. Taxes are 
due upon receipt of billing and becolne delinquent after Decelnber 31. Liens are placed 
on property for delinquent taxes on January 1 following the due date. 

The Franklin County Assessor establishes assessed values and the City tax collector 
Inakes collections. The assessed value at January 1, 2009 upon which the 2009 levy was 
based for real estate, personal property, and railroads and utilities taxes was 
$164,402,083. 

The City's tax rate was levied at $0.6503 per $100 of assessed valuation of which 
$0.5241 is used for general goverrunental services and $0.1262 is used for park services. 

19. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of basic financial statelnents in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles requires the City to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at fiscal year-end and revenues and expendi­
tures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those esti­
mates. 

NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

1. Deposits 

Custodial Credit Risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's 
deposits may not be returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in 
the possession of an outside party. The City's bank deposits are required by state law to 
be secured by the deposit of certain securities specified at RSMo 30.270 with the City or 
trustee institution. The value of the securities n1ust atnount to the total of the City's cash 
not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

As of June 30, 2010, the City's bank balances were entirely secured or collateralized with 
securities held by the City or by its agent in the City's natne. 

2. Investments 

As of June 30, 2010, the City had the following investlnents: 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

C-

Investments (Continued) 

Investments 

Governmental Funds 
Certificates of deposit 
Money Inarket funds 

Cash deposits 

Total Govermnental 
Funds Cash And 
Investn1ents 

Proprietary Funds 
Money market funds 
Cash deposits 

Total Proprietary 
Funds Cash And 
Investn1ents 

Investments Policies 

Fair 
Market 

Value 

$4,000,000 
525,530 

4,525,530 
1,887.380 

$6.412,910 

$ 245,050 
1,698,270 

$1.943)20 

Less 
Than 

No One Credit 
Maturity Year Risk 

4,000,000 N/A 
Not rated 

4,QOO!000 

~45.050 Not rated 

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investlnent will not ful­
fill its obligations. In accordance with its investlnent policy, the City IniniInizes credit 
risk by diversifying the portfolio to reduce potential losses on individual securities. 

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investlnent. Investlnents held for longer periods are subject to increased risk 
of adverse interest rate changes. In accordance with its investlnent policy, the City n1in­
iInizes interest rate risk by structuring the investlnent pOlifolio so that securities Inature to 
Ineet cash requirelnents for ongoing operations, therefore avoiding the need to sell securi­
ties on the openlnarket prior to Inaturity and investing in prilnarily shorter ten11 securi­
ties. 

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the Inagnitude of the City's 
invesbnent in a single issuer. In accordance with its invesbnent policy, the City Inini­
Inizes concentration of credit risk by diversifying the invesbnent portfolio. 

ASSETS 

Capital asset activity was as follows: 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

For The Year Ended ~June 30~ 2010 
Balance Transfers Transfers Balance 
June 30 and and June 30 

2009 Additions Deletions 2010 
Governmental Activities 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 2,106,032 2,106,032 
Construction in progress 693A37 1~716,103 1 ~823~992 585,548 

Total Capital Assets Not Being 
Depreciated 2~799A69 1,716~103 1~823,992 2~691,580 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 2,276,146 8,106 2,284,252 
Infrastructure 11,567,977 2,068,248 13,636,225 
Machinery and equipment 2~603,111 140~029 64~944 2~678,196 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 16A47)34 2,216)83 64,944 18.598,673 

Less - Accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 1,218,560 86,050 1,304,610 
Infrastructure 1,218,560 592,030 1,810,590 
Machinery and equiplTIent 1~698~559 220~092 64,944 1,853,707 

Total Accunlulated Depreciation 4,135,679 898,172 64,944 4,968,907 
Total Capital Assets Being 

Depreciated, Net 12,311,555 1,318~211 13,629,766 

Governmental Activities Capital 
Assets, Net $15.111.024 3.034.314 ~321.346 

Business-type Activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 574,708 574,708 
Construction in progress 1A32A78 765~51 0 1,155,188 1,042~800 

Total Capital Assets Not Being 
Depreciated 2~007,186 765~51 0 1,155,188 1,617~508 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 251,400 251,400 
Infrastructure 19,471,348 1,384,233 20,855,581 
Machinery and equipnlent 3,252,967 105,148 22~000 3,336,115 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 22,975~715 1A89)81 22~000 24A43~096 

Less - Accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 104,179 5,473 109,652 
Infrastructure 3,317,025 404,944 3,721,969 
lvlachinery and equipment 1,188,583 111,412 22,000 1 ,277~995 

Total AcculTIulated Depreciation 4~609,787 521,829 22,000 5,109,616 
Total Capital Assets Being 

Depreciated, Net 18)65~928 967,552 19,333A80 

Business-type Activities Capital 
Assets, Net $2i13 71, 114 UllJ)Ji2 &9501988 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/progran1s of the City as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
General govermnent 
Public safety 
Street departtnent 
Culture and recreation 
Planning and developlnent 
Building n1aintenance 

Total 

Business-type Activities 
Water/Sewer Facility 

NOTE D - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Individual interfund transactions are as follows: 

Transfers In 

General Fund 
Park Fund 

Transfers Out 

Transportation Tax 
General Fund 

For The 
Year Ended 

June 30, 2010 

$ 3,659 
84,021 

676,410 
113,472 

1,788 
18,822 

$898.172 

$521,829 

June 30 
2010 
Total 

$ 750,000 
319,500 

$1.069,500 

Interfund transfers were used to 1) Inove revenues fron1 the fund that ordinance or budget requires to 
collect then1 to the fund that ordinance or budget requires to expend theIn, 2) use unrestricted revenues 
collected in the General Fund to finance other funds in accordance with budgetary authorization, or 3) 
n10ve revenues in excess of CUlTent expenditures to other funds. 

E - RESTRICTED NET 

govelU111ent-wide statelnent of net assets reports 
$1,599,689 is restricted by enabling legislation. 

1 of restricted net assets, of which 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ------------------------------------------

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-tenn debt consisted of the following: 

Business-type Activities 

2006A certificates of participation issue of $4,170,000 used for constructing 
waterworks and sewerage systen1 in1prOVeITIents. Interest rates range froln 4.15% 
to 5.25%, n1aturity July 1, 2026. 

June 30 
2010 

$3,770,000 

Annual principal and interest planned due to certain prepaYInents of principal onlong-tenn debt are as fol­
lows: 

For The 
Years Ended Business-tv~e Activities 

June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2011 $ 150,000 186,697 336,697 
2012 155,000 179,758 334,758 
2013 160,000 172,432 332,432 
2014 170,000 164,720 334,720 
2015 175,000 156,611 331,611 

2016 - 2020 1,025,000 639,376 1,664,376 
2021 - 2025 1,310,000 341,918 1,651,918 
2026 - 2027 625,000 33,206 658,206 

$3.. 770,000 1.874,718 5)6441718 

The following is a SUITIITIary of the City's long-tern1 debt transactions: 

For The Year Ended June 30~ 2010 Amounts 
Balance Balance Due 
June 30 June 30 Within 

2009 Additions Reductions 2010 One Year 
Governmental Activities 

Loan payable $1,095,250 1,095,250 
Capital lease obligations 14~020 14,020 

Total Bonds And 
Capital Leases 1,109,270 1,109,270 

Compensated absences 111,974 513,067 502,160 122,881 92,161 

Total Govennnental 
Activities $1.221)44 513 1067 1.611A30 122)881 22,161 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -------------------------------------------

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

For The Year Ended June 30~ 2010 Amounts 
Balance Balance Due 
June 30 June 30 Within 

2009 Additions Reductions 2010 One Year 
Business-type Activities 

Certificates of pmiicipation $3,910,000 140,000 3,770,000 150,000 
Capital lease obligation 856,399 46,105 810,294 48,564 
Less - Discounts (26A62) (l ~556) (24 j 906) 

Total Bonds And 
Capital Leases 4,739,937 184,549 4,555,388 198,564 

COlnpensated absences 17,889 69,974 70,176 17,687 13,265 

Total Business-type 
Activities $4~757~826 69,974 254~725 4~573!075 211!829 

Compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund. Certificates of participation payable 
and capital leases are liquidated by the appropriate related fund. 

The City has entered into capital lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of vehicles and 
water/sewer facilities. 

The assets acquired through the capital leases are as follows: 

Asset: 
Infrastructure 
Machinery and equipment 
Less - Accumulated depreciation 

Total 

June 30, 2010 
Governmental 

Activities 

$ 
43,087 
25,934 

Business-type 
Activities 

914,863 

237,864 

676,999 

The future n1inimuln lease obligations and the net present value of these minilnum lease paytnents are as 
follows: 

For The Years 
Ended June 30 

2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

2016 - 2020 
2021 - 2023 

Total Minimum Lease Payments 
Less - Imputed interest 

Present Value Of Minimum Lease Payments 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 90,000 
90,000 
90,000 
90,000 
90,000 

450,000 
202,500 

1,102,500 
292,206 

$ 810,294 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE G - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN 

1. Plan Description and Provisions 

The City participates in the Missouri Local Government Elnployees Retirelnent Systerl1 
(LAGERS), an agent Inultiple-elnployer public elnployee retirelnent systeln that acts as a 
COlnlnon investlnent and administrative agent for local government entities in Missouri. 

LAGERS is a defined benefit pension plan which provides retiren1ent, disability, and 
death benefits to plan melnbers and beneficiaries. LAGERS was created and is governed 
by state statute, Section RSMo 70.600-70.755. As such, it is LAGERS' responsibility to 
administer the law in accordance with the expressed intent of the General Asselnbly. The 
plan is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) and it is tax exempt. 

LAGERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplelnentary infonnation. That report Inay be obtained by writing to 
LAGERS, P.O. Box 1665, Jefferson City, lvIO 65102 or by calling 1-800-447-4334. 

2. Funding Policy 

The City's full-tilne elnployees do not contribute to the pension plan. The City is re­
quired to contribute at an actuarially detennined rate; the current rates are 10.1 % (gen­
eral) and 11.5% (police) of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirelnents of 
plan Inembers are detennined by the governing body of the City. The contribution provi­
sions of the City are established by state statute. 

3. Annual Pension Cost 

The City's annual pension cost and net pension obligation for the current year were as 
follows: 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net pension obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Annual Pension Cost 
Actual contributions 
Increase (decrease) in NPO 
NPO beginning of year 

NPO End Of Year 

$266,430 

266,430 
266,430 

$=== 

The required contribution was determined as part of the February 29, 2008 annual actuar­
ial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions in­
cluded a) a rate ofretum on the investlnent of present and future assets of7.5% per year, 
cOlnpounded am1ually; b) projected salary increases of 4% per year, cOlnpounded annu­
ally, attributable to inflation; c) additional projected salary increases ranging frOln 0% to 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -------------------------------------------

NOTE G - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN (Continued) 

3. Annual Pension Cost (Continued) 

year, depending on age and division, attributable to seniorityhnerit; d) pre­
retirelnent mortality based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Table set back zero years 
for men and zero years for wonlen; and e) post retirelnent Inoliality based on the 1971 
Group Annuity Mortality table for Inales projected to 2000 set back one year for Inen and 
seven years for WOlnen. The actuarial value of assets was detennined using techniques 
that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investtnents over a 
five-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level 
percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The amortization period at Febru-
ary 29, 2008 was 15 years. 

Three-Year Trend Information 

Annual Percentage Net 
For The Years Pension OfAPC Pension 
Ended June 30 Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation 

2010 $266,430 100% $ -
2009 252,932 100 
2008 221,586 100 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Entry Age 
For The Actuarial 

Valuation Actuarial Accrued 
Years Ended Value Of Liability Unfunded 

February 28/29 Assets (AAL) AAL 

2010 $5,998,210 $7,238,739 $1,240,529 
2009 5,300,458 6,547,535 1,247,077 
2008 6,074,262 6,101,705 27,443 

For The Unfunded AAL 
Valuation Annual As A Percentage 

Years Ended Funded Covered Of Covered 
February 28/29 Ratio Payroll 

2010 83% $2,470,976 50% 
2009 81 2,288,797 54 
2008 100 2,091,859 

Note: The above assets and Aft. ... L do not include the assets and present value of benefits 
associated with the Benefit Reserve Fund and the Casualty Reserve Fund. The actuarial 
assumptions were changed in conjunction with the February 28,2006 annual actuarial 
valuations. For a cOInplete description of the actuarial assmnptions used in the mmual 
valuations, please contact the LAGERS' office in Jefferson City, MO. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE H - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is a IneInber of the Missouri Intergovemlnental Risk Managelnent Association (MIRMA), a 
state-wide governmental self-insurance pool which provides property, liability, and workers' COInpensa­
tion coverages to its participating meInbers in a single cOlnprehensive multiline package. The various 
lines of coverage are not available individually and the Inembership is lilnited to Inunicipalities and mu­
nicipally owned utilities. The City's policy covers all real and personal property owned by the City ex­
cept sewer lines. The policy is for replacement cost and expires June 30,2010. 

MIRMA is funded by annualIneInber asseSSInents calculated at a rate per $100 of annual payroll which 
applies to alllines of coverage on a cOInposite basis. These funds are used to pay losses within specific 
risk retention limits shared equally by all members; purchase excess insurance which provides a transfer 
of catastrophic risk to private insurance carriers; purchase services such as elaims administration, loss 
prevention, and data processing; and pay administrative expenses. Should actual insurance losses ex­
eed MIRMA' s estimates, the City could be required to contribute additional funds. Management be­
lieves the risk of additional loss is miniInal and any additional contributions that may be required would 
not Inaterially iInpact the overall operations of the City. The City paid an assessment totaling $211,972 
for MIRMA's fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Settled elailns resulting in these risks have not exceeded 
coverage in any of the past three years. 

NOTE I - COMMITMENTS 

The City is obligated in a cost share iInprovelnent project for Highway 50 with the Missouri Departlnent 
of Transportation. This cost share improvelnent project is $7,000,000 of which the City is obligated to 
pay approxilnately $715,000. The project was started in 2009 and cOInpleted in September 2010. 

The City had purchase cOInInittnents in the following mnounts: 

City Hall projects-City Hall windows 
Street projects 
Wastewater treattnent plant, lift station, extend sewer line, 

and remove lift station 

NOTE J .. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

June 30 
2010 

$ 68,126 
319,180 

3,597,371 

$3.984.677 

The City Inaintains two departments for the Water/Sewer Fund. Segment infonnation is as follows: 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
__________________ .NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE J - SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 

ASSETS 
Current and other assets 
Restricted assets 
Capital assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

OPERATING REVENUES 

DEPRECIATION 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
(EXPENSES): 

Taxes 
Investn1ent income 
Miscellaneous 
Interest expense 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, nJL Y 1 

NET ASSETS, JUNE 30 

Condensed Statement Of Net Assets 
June 30~ 2010 

Water Sewer Totals 

$ 532,766 577,095 1,109,861 
76,430 1,459,960 1,536,390 

6)88)883 14)562)105 2Ol950)988 
6,998,079 16,599,160 23,597,239 

131,504 309,888 441,392 
842)582 3)595)094 4,437)676 
974)086 3)904,982 4,879,068 

5,578,589 10,817,011 16,395,600 
916,044 916,044 

445A04 961,123 L406,527 

$6,023,993 18,718,171 

Condensed Statement Of Revenues, 
EXJ1enses~ And Changes In Net Assets 
For The Year Ended June 30~ 2010 
Water Sewer Totals 

$1,010,291 773,432 1,783,723 

173,913 347,916 521,829 

504)932 1)155)983 

331,446 (225,535) 105,911 

775,930 775,930 
13,997 32,678 46,675 
64,286 231 64,517 

(43,493) (190,073) (233,566) 

91)85 1371860 229)045 

457,421 531,091 988,512 

5l566)572 17J29)659 

$6~023~993 18)18171 
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NOTE J - SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Net cash provided by (used in): 
Operating activities 
Noncapital financing activities 
Capital and related financing activities 
Investing activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1 

CASlI AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 

NOTE K - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

$480,872 112,712 593,584 
148,803 627,127 775,930 

(457,953) (832,885) (1,290,838) 
78,283 32,909 111, 192 

250,005 (60,137) 189,868 

74~205 1,753,452 

$324210 1~943 320 

The City approved a Recovery Zone EconOlnic Development bond issue in Septelnber 2010 in the 
anl0unt of$3,665,000 and Taxable COlnbined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds in the 
atnount of$50,000 for constructing the East Denmark Wastewater Treatlnent Plant, Highway 47 lift sta­
tion and extend sewer line and relnove lift station at Strawberry Fields. 

NOTE L - FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB 
54), establishes clearer fund balance classifications that can be lnore consistently applied and clarifies 
existing governlnental fund types. GASB 54 will be effective for the City for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2011. The City, however, has not yet cOlnpleted its asseSSlnent of the statelnent. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
____________ REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SECTION 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF 

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Fines and forfeitures 
Licenses and permits 
Charges for services 
Intergovernmental 
Investment income 
Rental inconle 
Miscellaneous 

EXPENDITURES 
Cunent: 

Total Revenues 

General govelument: 
Mayor and board: 

Personnel services 
General services 

Total Mayor And Board 

City clerk: 
Personnel services 
Supplies and materials 
General services 
Maintenance and repairs 

Total City Clerk 

City administrator: 
Personnel services 
Supplies and materials 
General services 
Maintenance and repairs 

Total City Administrator 

collector: 
Personnel services 
Supplies and lnaterials 

Total City Collector 

Original 
Budget 

$ 4,006,800 
128,500 
113,500 
500,000 

1,626,716 
75,000 
40,000 
17,250 

6,507,766 

24,085 
19,750 
43,835 

92,990 
2,300 
9,800 

20,200 
125,290 

146,800 
1,000 
8,350 
2,150 

158,300 

42,002 
2,600 

44,602 

Final 
Budget 

4,328,300 
111,740 
78,850 

658,700 
1,124,796 

104,980 
36,700 
25,445 

6,469,511 

24,085 
19,750 
43,835 

92,990 
2,300 
9,800 

20,200 
125,290 

160,109 
1,015 
8,350 

172,109 

34,542 
2,600 

142 

Actual 

4,307,702 
112,758 
90,640 

658,708 
1,124,971 

104,986 
36,701 

31 
6,472,597 

23,850 
1 19 
38,969 

93,154 
2,300 
5,468 

1 5 
11 

160,105 
1,012 
7,102 

33,846 
1 

Over 
(Under) 
Budget 

(20,598) 
1,018 

11,790 
8 

175 
6 
1 

10,686 
3,086 

(235) 
(4,631) 
(4,866) 

164 

( 4,332) 
(1,485) 
(5,653) 

(4) 

(3) 

(1,248) 
(31) 

(1,286) 

(696) 
(813) 

(1,509) 
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CITY ,OF UNION, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF 

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND (Continued) 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Over 
Original Final ITT ... rI",,-..\ 

\UHU~lJ 

Budget Budget Actual Budget 
EXPENDITURES (Continued) 

Current (Continued): 
General government (Continued): 

City attorney: 
General services 32,500 21,963 (332) 

Municipal court: 
Personnel services 35,510 35,510 34,806 (704) 
Supplies and materials 1,200 2,000 1,904 (9{)) ,- - / 

General services 7,250 11,965 11,821 (144) 
Maintenance and repairs 200 200 200 

Total Municipal Court 44,160 49,675 48,731 (944) 

Incidental: 
Personnel services 805,000 847,229 795,429 (51,800) 
Supplies and materials 11,000 11,000 9,328 (1,672) 
General services 341,950 312,995 311,823 (1,172) 
Maintenance and repairs 5,650 5,650 (146) 

Total Incidental 1,163,600 1,176,874 (54,790) 

Legals and elections: 
General service 14,200 14,200 1 (1,864) 

Total General Gov-
enlment 1,626,487 1,641,420 1 76 (71,244) 

Public safety: 
Personnel services 1,163,450 1,173,265 1,170,374 (2,891) 
Supplies and materials 59,527 66,516 65,147 (l,369) 
General services 64,900 65,895 64,419 (1,476) 
Maintenance and repairs 81,200 76,527 63,083 (13,444) 
Capital outlay 51 

Total Public Safety 1,439,399 1,414,660 (26,445) 

Street departInent: 
Personnel services 346,850 346,850 343,526 (3,324) 
Supplies and Inaterials 105,000 116,630 115,373 (1,257) 
General services 13,950 51,79] 47,902 (3,889) 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF 

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND (Continued) 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Over 
Original Final (Under) 
Budget Budget Actual Budget 

EXPENDITURES (Continued) 
Current (Continued): 

Street department (Continued): 
Maintenance and repairs 241,550 213,392 (2,278) 
Capital outlay 2,155,454 1,639,135 (4,971) 

Total Street Department 2,862,804 2,375,047 (15,719) 

Refuse collection and other: 
Cemetery: 

General services 60 60 (60) 
Maintenance and repairs 12,000 12,000 9,344 (2,656) 

Total Cemetery 12,060 12,060 (2,716) 

Sanitation: 
General services 450,000 583,400 583,301 (99) 

Total Refuse Collection 
And Other 462,060 595,460 592,645 (2,815) 

Planning and developtnent: 
Engineering services: 

Personnel services 148,570 148,570 149,021 451 
Supplies and nlaterials 1,500 1,500 1,188 (312) 
General services 2,300 2,300 1,362 (938) 
Maintenance and repairs 4,300 4,300 (1,275) 

Total Engineering 
Services 156,670 156,670 1 (2,074) 

Econonlic development: 
Personnel services 97,840 97,840 97,421 (419) 
Supplies and materials 1,250 1,250 932 (318) 
General services 44,450 36,845 32,283 (4,562) 
Ivlaintenance and repairs 1,550 1,550 720 (830) 
Capital outlay 1 ;1(\ (\0'") 1 1')0 

l'-t)',),OL 1,,)0 

Total Economic 
optnent 

Total Planning And 
veloptnent 451 444,137 (8,065) 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF 

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND (Continued) 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

EXPENDITURES (Continued) 
Current (Continued): 

Building maintenance: 
Personnel services 
Supplies and materials 
General senrices 
Maintenance and repairs 

Total Building Mainte-
nance 

Total Expenditures 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
(USES) 
Sale of capital assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1 

BALANCE, JUNE 30 

$ 

Original 
Budget 

38,090 
4,900 

20,250 
10,200 

73,440 
6,915,932 

(408,166) 

1,500 
750,000 

(319,500) 

432,000 

Final 
Budget 

38,090 
4,900 

20,250 
10,200 

73,440 
6,570,609 

(101,098) 

1,500 
750,000 

(319,500) 

432,000 

330,902 

Actual 

39,436 
4,729 

17,792 
10,612 

6,445,450 

1,625 
750,000 

(319,500) 

459,272 

5,673,631 

$ 6,132,903 

Over 
(Under) 
Budget 

1,346 
(171) 

(2,458) 
412 

/0"71 '\ 

~ 0/1) 

(125,159) 

128,245 

125 

125 

128,370 

Page 44 



CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF 

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - PARK FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Over 
Original Final (Under) 
Budget Budget Actual Budget 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 241,000 241,000 241,381 381 
Charges for services 163,200 194,085 207,193 13,108 
Intergovernmental 15,000 
Investment incolne 5,000 5,000 13,377 8,377 
Miscellaneous 52,000 623,025 623,229 204 

Total Revenues 476,200 1,063,110 1,085,180 22,070 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Culture and recreation 694,863 714,717 682,274 (32,443) 
Debt service: 

Principal 1,095,250 1,095,250 
Interest and fiscal charges 25,000 26,896 25,013 (1,883) 

Capital outlay 64,065 64,200 64,194 (6) 
Total Expenditures 783,928 1,901,063 1,866,731 (34,332) 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (307,728) (837,953) (781,551) 56,402 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 319,500 319,500 319,500 

NET CHANGE IN FUND 
BALANCE $ 11,772 (518,453) (462,051) 56,402 

FUND BALANCE, JUL Y 1 519,699 

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30 $ 57,648 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL - TRANSPORTATION TAX FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Investlnent incolne 

Total Revenues 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers out 

NET CI-IANGE IN FUND 
BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1 

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30 

or;. •• ~ 

vngln~h 

And Final 
Budget 

$ 775,000 
10,000 

785,000 

(750,000) 

$ 35,000 

Actual 

775,897 
1 93 

791,090 

(750,000) 

41,090 

684,254 

$ 725,344 

Over 
(Under) 
Budget 

897 
5,193 
6,090 

6,090 
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Budgetary Data 

CITY OF UNION~ MISSOURI 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION­

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

The City follows the procedures outlined below in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the finan­
cial statelnents: 

a. Prior to July 1, the Finance Officer sublnits to the Board of Aldennen a proposed operating budget 
for the fiscal year cOlnlnencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed ex­
penditures and the ITIeanS of financing thein. 

b. Prior to July 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 
c. Budgets are adopted on a basis generally consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting prin­

ciples except Enterprise Funds which include capital outlay as an expense. 
d. Cunent year budget includes atnendments. 
e. Budget amendments at the department levellTIUst be approved by the Board of Aldermen. The 

City Administrator may authorize transfers of appropriations within a department. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
_____________ non,.--...- ................ SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SECTION 
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ASSETS 
Cash and investments 
Restricted Assets: 

Cash 

Total Assets 

FUND BALANCES 
Reserved for: 

Debt Service 
Unreserved: 

Special Revenue Funds 
Debt Service Funds 

Total Fund 
Balances 

Cemetery 
Fund 

$ 65,853 

$ 

65,853 

CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - COMBINING 

BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
30,2010 

Revenue 

Stormwater 
Management 

Fund 

79,850 

79,850 

79,850 

79,850 

Swimplex 
Fund 

79,896 

79,896 

79,896 

79,896 

Debt 
Service 

2006B 
Certificates Of 
Participation 

Fund 

227,502 

295,134 

Total 

225,599 

522,636 

748,235 

227,502 

145,703 
375,030 

748,235 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - COMBINING 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Debt 
Revenue Service 

2006B 
Stormwater Certificates Of 

Cemetery Management Swimplex Participation 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

REVENUES 
Investment incon1e $ 1,666 2,060 2,061 77 5,864 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt Service: 

Interest and fiscal charges 2,925 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 1,666 2,060 2,061 (2,848) 2,939 

OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES 
Sale of capital assets 1 1,625 

NET CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCES 3,291 2,060 2,061 (2,848) 4,564 

FUND BALANCES, JUL Y 1 62,562 77,790 525,484 743,671 

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 79,896 748,235 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL - CEMETERY FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

And Final (Under) 
Budget Actual Budget 

REVENUES 
InvestInent incolne $ 800 1,666 866 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Sale of capital assets 500 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 1,300 3,291 1,991 

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1 62,562 

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30 $ 65,853 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL - STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

REVENUES 
Investlnent incon1e 
Miscellaneous 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1 

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30 

Original 
Budget 

$ 1,000 
5,000 

$ 6,000 

THE ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Final 
Actual 

1,000 2,060 

1,000 2,060 

$ 79,850 

Over 
(Under) 
Budget 

1,060 

1,060 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET 
AND ACTUAL - SWIMPLEX FUND - DEBT SERVICE FUND 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

REVENUES 
InvestInent incolne 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1 

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30 

Original 
And Final 

$ 1,000 

$ 1,000 

(Under) 
Actual 

1 1,061 

2,061 1,061 

$ 79,896 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EX­

PENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
2006B CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION FUND DEBT SERVICE FUND 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

lnvestlnent incolne 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service: 

Interest and fiscal charges 

NET CHANGE IN FUND 
BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, JULY 1 

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30 

$ 

Original 
Budget 

6,000 

$ 6,000 

Final 
Budget 

75 

2,930 

(2,855) 

Actual 

77 

(2,848) 

525,484 

$ 

Over 
(Under) 
Budget 

2 

(5) 

7 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - STATEMENT OF 

REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - PROPRIETARY FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Over 
Original Final (Under) 
Budget Budget Actual Budget 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services: 

Water $ 1,097,600 1,010,275 1,010,291 16 
Sewer 795,000 773,430 2 

Total Operating Revenues 1,892,600 1,783,705 1,783,723 18 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Depreciation 521,835 521,829 (6) 
Amortization 8,353 8,353 
Water 972,100 531,221 504,932 (26,289) 
Sewer 918,600 674,772 642,698 (32,074) 

Total Operating Expenses 1,890,700 1,736,181 1,677,812 (58,369) 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 1,900 47,524 105,911 58,387 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
(EXPENSES) 
Taxes 760,000 767,920 775,930 8,010 
Investment income 15,500 47,675 46,675 (1,000) 
Miscellaneous 16,000 65,285 64,517 (768) 
Interest expense (247,048) (233,568) (233,566) 2 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 
(Expenses) 544,452 647,312 653,556 6,244 

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL 
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 546,352 694,836 759,467 64,631 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 229,044 229,045 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 923,880 988,512 

NET ASSETS, JULY 1 17,729,659 

NET ASSETS, JUNE 30 $ 18,718,171 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
STATISTICAL SECTION 

30,2010 

This part of the City's CAFR presents detailed infonllation as a context for understanding what 

the infonnation in the financial statenlents, note disclosures, and required suppieinentary 

infonnation says about the City's overall financial health. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend infonllation to help the reader understand how the 

City's financial perfonnance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain infonnation to help the reader assess the City's Inost 

significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present infonnation to help the reader assess the affordability of 

the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue 

additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer detnographic and econoinic indicators to help the reader 

understand the environinent within which the City's financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 

how the infonnation in the City's financial report relates to the services the City 

provides and the activities it perfonns. 

Pages 

57 - 63 

64 - 67 

68 - 70 

71 - 74 

75 - 76 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the infonnation in these schedules is derived froin the CAFRs 

for the relevant year. 
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Source: Basic financial statements. 

GASB 34 was in 2005. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS 

For The Years Ended June 30 

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

EXPENSES 

G{lVernnlentai .l.s\ctivities 
General government $ 1,570,872 1,512,762 1,409,039 1,318,463 1,209,771 1,120,103 
Public safety 1,449,950 1,495,039 1,352,696 1,158,425 1,092,411 985,320 
Street department 1,229,372 1,696,109 916,981 733,879 602,777 569,234 
Refuse collection and other 592,645 512,651 489,344 455,528 435,822 433,317 
Culture and recreation 769,928 748,890 716,764 646,279 590,671 594,940 
Planning and development 438,776 405,875 468,972 377,899 286,525 244,625 
Building maintenance 89,991 100,942 84,915 78,277 70,398 58,993 
Interest and fiscal charges 27,938 327,304 134,636 147,184 215,311 216,877 

Total Governmental 

Activities Expenses 6,169,472 6,799,572 5,573,347 4,915,934 4,503,686 4,223,409 

Business-type Activities 
Water/sewer 1,911,378 1,994,739 1,837,237 1,671,242 1,414,645 1,378,748 

Total Primary Government 

Expenses 8,080,850 8,794,311 7,410,584 6,587,176 5,918,331 5,602,157 

PROGRAM REVENUES 

Governmental Activities 

Charges for services: 

General government 129,462 104,800 145,709 134,165 245,323 186,800 
Public safety 192,358 179,989 163,715 177,447 145,883 111,622 
Street department 5,105 642 1,651 5,895 

Refuse collection and other 603,578 499,050 473,582 444,972 418,900 393,426 
Culture and recreation 217,506 213,116 237,257 203,906 211,525 202,111 

Planning and development 711 16,272 941 

Operating grants and contributions 383,815 426,906 458,802 374,997 

Capital grants and contributions 1,198,805 508,810 6,508,952 2,301,269 313,304 39,833 
Total Governmental 

Activities Program 

Revenues 2,731,340 1,949,585 7,989,668 3,643,592 1,334,935 933,792 

Business-type Activities 
Charges for services: 

Water! sewer 1,783,723 1,810,401 1,899,237 1,826,753 1,801,907 1,638,626 
Operating grants and contributions 22,351 

Capital grants and contributions 229,045 58,120 680,401 1,197,277 

Total Business-type 

Activities Program 

Revenues 2,012,768 1,868,521 2,60 I ,989 3,024,030 1,801,907 1,638,626 

Total Primary Government 

Program Revenues 4,744,108 3,818,106 10,591,657 6,667,622 3,136,842 2,572,418 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (Continued) 

SIX FISCAL YEARS 

For The Years Ended June 30 
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

NET REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Governmental activities (3,438,132) (4,849,987) 2,416,321 (1,272,342) (3,168,751) (3,289,617) 

activities 10 I 387,262 259,878 

Total Primary Government 
Net Revenues (Expenses) (4,976,205) 3,181,073 (2,781,489) (3,029,739) 

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Governmental Activities 
Taxes: 

Sales 2,327,690 2,378,862 2,523,912 2,391,467 2,284,329 2,194,395 

Property 1,056,084 1,007,328 974,171 907,026 843,656 756,917 

Franchise 1,338,241 1,215,314 1,385,504 998,653 921,519 853,945 

Other 275,591 384,789 338,589 260,541 519,366 637,131 

Investment income 139,420 196,484 234,887 223,812 132,041 72,374 

Gain on sale of assets 1,625 OLi '7Ah 1 OA'7 oo~ 38,320 710,886 ...... -., ,-.v 1. ,../l J ,JjV 

Rental income 71,911 56,183 51,761 

Miscellaneous 624,010 454,700 18,174 326,989 20,652 149,219 

Transfers (338,600) 257,718 (1,009,448) (11,806) (7,243) 

Total Governmental 
Activities General Rev-
enues And Other 
Changes In Net Assets 5,465,534 7,737,134 5,420,643 4,656,738 

Business-type Activities 
Sales taxes 775,930 792,580 840,905 796,675 637,320 365,725 

Investment income 46,675 45,092 47,548 56,841 49,342 24,538 

Miscellaneous 64,517 29,317 30,568 17,414 178,674 154,805 

Transfers 338,600 (257,718) 11,806 7,243 

Total Business-type 
Activities General Rev-
enues And Other 
Changes In Net Assets 122 1,205,589 661,303 877,142 552,311 

Total Primary Government 
General Revenues And 
Other Changes In Net 
Assets 6,649,783 6,671,123 8,398,437 6,069,499 6,297,785 5,209,049 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
Governmental activities 2,324,529 615,547 10,153,455 2,916,779 2,251,892 1,367,121 

Business-type activities 12 1,079,371 1,426,055 66 1,264,404 812,189 

Total Primary Government 1,694,918 11,579,510 2,179,310 

Source: Basic financial statements. 

GASB 34 was implemented in 2005. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SIX FISCAL YEARS 

June 30 

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

General Fund 

Reserved $ 131,912 144,600 73,124 113,447 70,114 75,523 
Unreserved 1 4,409,421 3,672,232 2,983,652 

Total General Fund 5,673.631 4,482,545 3,742,346 3,059,175 

Park Fund 

Reserved $ 33,662 28,355 13,500 14,000 22,188 21,290 
Unreserved 491,344 453,865 404,518 

Total Park Fund 519,699 467,365 279,926 209,257 

Transportation Tax Fund 

Reserved $ 
Unreserved 684,254 1,377,085 404,077 325,993 

Total Transportation Tax Fund 684,254 1,377,085 404,077 325,993 

2000 Certificates Of Participation Fund 
Reserved $ 410,481 

Unreserved 267,988 

Total 2000 Celiificates Of 
Participation Fund 678,469 

200613 Certificates Of Participation Fund 
Reserved $ 227,502 227,500 227,814 227,500 
Unreserved 134 297,984 2,344,595 

Total 2006B Celiificates Of 

Pmiicipation Fund 525,484 2,572,409 

All Other Governmental Funds 

Reserved $ 208,647 208,507 563,807 
Unreserved, reported in: 

Special Revenue Funds 145,703 140,352 135,085 122,682 81,405 45,878 
Capital Projects Funds 299,186 291,627 

Debt Service Funds 77,835 85,775 233,038 

Total All Other Govern-

mental Funds 218,187 220,860 1,134,350 

Source: Basic financial statements. 

GASB 34 was implemented in 2005. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SIX FISCAL YEARS 

For The Years 

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 
REVENUES 

Taxes $ 5,324,980 5,265,651 5,501,547 4,892,028 4,568,870 4,442,387 
Fines and forfeitures 1 i2.758 111,930 128,722 134,838 i45,883 111,622 
Licenses and permits 90,640 102,739 144,464 132,872 200,545 146,068 
Charges for services 865.901 759,292 680,594 631,525 586,172 557,244 
Intergovernmental 1,124,971 461,[86 696,473 100,090 41,553 39,833 
Investment income 139,420 196,484 234,887 223,812 132,041 72,376 
Rental income 36,701 71,911 56,183 51,761 43,492 39,327 
Miscellaneous 514,586 97,135 62,299 

Total Revenues 7,483,779 7,540,005 5,471,156 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 1,570,176 1,506,064 1,395,844 1,306,823 1,197,458 1,103,574 
Public safety 1,363,023 1,429,339 1,239,194 1,048,852 1,034,736 947,302 
Street department 720,193 600,529 523,690 439,864 437,740 429,985 
Refuse collection and other 592,645 512,651 489,344 455,528 435,822 433,317 
Culture and recreation 682,274 1,803,051 587,083 528,041 503,763 463,890 
Planning and development 285,952 253,080 278,800 332,099 282,536 217,576 
Building maintenance 72,569 80,988 67,445 54,394 54,450 49,248 
Capital outlay 1,905,086 1,788,263 1,713,852 873,900 678,903 744,214 
Debt service: 

Principal 1,095,250 1,795,000 270,000 210,000 614,947 145,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 27,938 66,319 112,124 79,000 215,311 218,156 
Bond issue costs 

Tota[ Expenditures 06 9,835,284 6,677,376 5,455,666 4,752,262 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 

EXPENDITURES (2,351,505) 862,629 345,706 718,894 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

(USES) 

Sale of capital assets 3,250 95,846 1,974,898 316,579 724,861 2,850 
Capital lease 43,087 21,518 

Note payable 1,095,250 

Issuance of certificates of participation 2,275,000 
Payment to escrow agcnt (2,626,507) 

Bond discount (15,100) 

Transfers in 1,069,500 2,734,829 995,555 2,232,235 2,352,682 1,178,753 

Transfers out (1,069,500) (3,073,429) (3,241,683) (2,364,488) (1,185,996) 
Total Other Financing 

Sources (Uses) 852,496 2,275,703 (4,393) 

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (l,499,009) 3,138,332 (113,227) 714,501 

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital 

expenditures 21.4 % 25.1 7.4 7.6 17.4 9.1 

Source: Basic financial statements. 

GASB 34 was implemented in 2005. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
PROGRAM REVENUES BY FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS 

Program Revenues -
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

Governmental 
General $ 129,462 104,800 145,709 134,165 517,074 186,800 

Public safety 295,769 369,044 340,771 332,037 187A36 151,455 

Street 1,482,449 722,870 6,778,374 2,520,718 

Refuse collection and other 603,578 499,050 473,582 444,972 418,900 393,426 

and 219,371 237,549 251,232 210,759 211,525 202,111 
16,272 941 

Activities 2,731,340 1,949,585 7,989,668 3,643,592 1,334,935 933,792 

Business-type 
Water/sewer 2,012,768 1,868,521 2,601,989 3,024,030 1,801,907 1,638,626 

Govermnent _$_ 4,744,108 3,818,106 10,591,657 6,667,622 3,136,842 2,572,418 

Source: Basic staterr1ents. 

GASB 34 was 2005. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
REVENUES BY SOURCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SIX FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Sales Property Franchise Other 
Year Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Total 

2010 $ 2,327,690 $ 1,090,725 $ 1,338,241 $ 568,324 $ 5,324,980 
2009 2,378,862 997,214 1,215,314 674,261 5,265,651 
2008 2,523,912 945,460 1,385,504 646,671 5,501,547 

2007 2,391,467 907,026 998,653 594,882 4,892,028 

2006 2,284,329 843,656 921,519 519,366 4,568,870 

2005 2,194,395 756,917 853,945 637,131 4,442,388 

Source: Required supplelnental infonnation and basic financial statelnents. 

GASB 34 was ilnplelnented in 2005. 
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Fiscal 
Year 

2010 
2009 
2008 

2007 

2006 
2005 

2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 

Fiscal 

Year 

2010 

2009 

2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 

Calendar 
Year 

2009 $ 

2008 
2007 

2006 

2005 
2004 

2003 
2002 
2001 
2000 

Calendar 

2009 $ 

2008 
2007 
2006 

2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 
2000 

Real Estate 

Residential Commercial Agricultural 

Proper~ Property Property 

78,452,987 $ 50,862,259 $ 1,546,562 

77,384,338 49,068,689 1,435,266 
74,756,189 47,180,068 1,647,990 

62,528,100 43,971,403 1,241,91] 

58,141,116 42,080,582 967,100 
46,894,294 35,837,738 1,129,441 

43,848,344 34,293,794 1,251,130 
40,908,830 32,967,263 616,762 
39,262,013 31,339,221 578,519 
35,168,850 26,983,774 858,772 

Railroad And Utility 
Assessed Estimated Assessed 

Value Actual Value Value 

5,370,843 $ 16,644,781 $ 164,402,083 

4,382,683 13,562,416 160,820,001 
4,453,221 13,775,317 156,024,858 

4,161,403 12,875,367 140,910,603 
3,989,071 12,353,230 130,564,088 
3,870,789 11,966,055 111,244,514 
3,384,651 10,477,379 106,101,009 
3,429,437 10,611,876 103,647,853 
3,699,203 11,430,929 100,008,804 
3,667,577 11,321,443 89,378,997 

Total 

CITY OF' lVns s o URI 
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Personal Property 
Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated 

Value Actual Value Value Actual Value ----

$ 130,861,808 $ 584,742,034 $ 28,169,432 $ 84,508,296 
127,888,293 572,586,193 28,549,025 85,647,075 
123,584,247 554,624,589 27,987.390 83,962,170 
107,741,414 476,855,156 29,007.786 87,023,358 
101,188,798 445,566,859 25,386,219 76,158.657 
83,861,473 368,217,013 23,512,252 70,536,756 
79,393,268 348,374,947 23,323,090 69,969,270 
74,492,855 323,472,012 25,725,561 77,176,683 
71,179,753 309,398,231 25,129848 75,389,544 
63,011,396 276,579,938 22,700024 68,100,072 

Ratio Of 
Total Assessed 
Value To Total 

Estimated Estimated 

Actual Value 

$ 685,895, III 24.0 % 

671,795,684 23.9 

652,362,076 23.9 

576,753,881 24.4 
534,078,746 24.4 
450,719,824 24.7 
428,821,596 24.7 
411,260,571 25.2 

396,218,704 25.2 

356,001,453 25.1 

Notes: Assessments detennined by the Assessor of Franklin County as of January 1. Property has an assessed value to estimated actual value as follows: commercial real estate 32%, residential real estate 19%, 
agricultural real estate 12%, and personal property 33-1/3%. 

Source: Franklin County 
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CITY OF UNI10N, MISSOURI 
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND AIJL OVERLAPPING GOVERNJVIENTS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 ----

City of Union 0.650 0.639 0.636 0.656 0.656 0.694 0.694 0.681 0.670 0.670 

0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 0.030 

0.881 0.884 0.884 0.894 0.936 0.946 0.951 0.941 0.932 0.882 

District 0.269 0.269 0.268 0.279 0.279 0.293 0.293 0.293 0.289 0.293 

Union District 0.165 0.166 0.165 0.172 0.172 0.180 0.180 0.180 0.180 0.180 
Union School District 3.700 3.700 3.510 3.470 3.470 3.470 3.470 3.470 3.470 3.470 
East Central 0.433 0.435 0.431 0.447 0.447 0.437 0.469 0.454 0.453 0.448 

District 0.076 0.092 0.091 0.096 0.096 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.097 0.098 

Source: Assessor (rates stated per $100 assessed valuation). 
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CITY OF UNION., MISSOURI 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND FIVE YEARS AGO 

2010 2005 
Percentage Of Percentage Of 

Total City Total City 
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable 
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 

Valuation Rank Value Valuation Rank Value 

Esselte Pendaflex $ 3,812,169 1 2.32 % $ 3,834,045 1 3.45 % 

1,904,742 2 1.16 1,616,406 2 1.45 
D R G Plastics 1,161,894 'l 0.71 636,208 9 0.57 .) 

MHB 1,113,712 4 0.70 1,126,611 3 1.01 
Union Housing Association 1,140,336 5 0.69 

Creek Corporation 864,783 6 0.41 

United Bank of Union 806,838 7 0.49 686,058 0.62 
Franklin Co. Medical Outreach 696,304 8 0.42 733,549 6 0.66 
Jeleo Realty 666,113 9 0.41 713,968 7 0.64 
PCA 669,599 10 0.41 

Pharma 11 864,998 4 0.78 
MO Natural Gas 12 779,853 5 0.70 
Bequette Properties LLC 13 602,276 10 0.54 

$ 12,836,490 7.72 % $ 11,593,972 

Source: County IT Department - five years of data is what the County has on record. 
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CITY OF UNI()N, lVIISSOURI 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AJ~D COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Outstanding 

Total Delinquent 

Current Percent Delinquent Total Collections Outstanding Taxes As 

Net Tax Collected Tax As Percent Delinquent Percent 

Year Levy Collections As Current Collections Collections Of Levy Taxes Of Levy 

2010 2009 $ 1,037,528 $ 926,243 89.3 % $ 86,171 $ 1,012,414 97.6 % $ 111,285 10.73 % 

2009 1,005,337 895,015 89.0 104,438 999,453 99.4 110,322 10.97 

2008 2007 965,544 842,659 87.3 92,112 934,771 96.8 122,885 12.73 
2007 2006 897,501 797,497 88.9 187,721 985,218 109.8 100,004 11. 

2006 2005 830,814 655,009 78.8 83,840 738,849 88.9 175,805 21.16 
2005 2004 747,925 663,536 88.7 78,060 741,596 99.2 84,389 11.28 
2004 2003 713,666 636,528 89.2 121,445 757,973 106.2 77,138 10.81 

2003 684,526 536,318 78.3 181,228 711:,546 104.8 148,208 21.65 
2002 2001 543,400 435,354 80.1 21,324 456,678 84.0 108,046 19.88 
2001 2000 N/A N/A N/A N/A l\J/A N/A N/A N/A 

Source: City's tax database. 
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Governmental Activities 

Certificates Leasehold Capital 

Fiscal Lease Of Revenue Loan Lease 

Year Bonds Payable Obligation 

2010 $ $ $ $ $ 810,294 

2009 1,095,250 856,399 

2008 34,407 1,795,000 900,169 

2007 43,376 2,065,000 941,723 

2006 71,030 2,345,000 981,173 
2005 29,236 2,860,000 1,018,625 

2004 2,890,000 1,054,182 

2003 23,395 1,087,937 
2002 45,570 3,270,000 475,000 1,390,000 
2001 3,545,000 575,000 1,685,000 

(1) See \t:>rY1A""''lnh,f'C' and Economic Statistics Table 

Note: Details the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to financial statements. 

CITY OF UNION, lVIISSOURI 
RATIOS OF OUTSTAl~DING DEBT BY TYPE 

TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Activities 

Certificates Leasehold Total 

Of Revenue Primary Per 
Participation Bonds Government Capita (1) --,., 

$ 3,770,000 $ $ 4,580,294 $ 472 
3,910,000 5,875,669 N/A 

4,045,000 6,774,576 700 
4,615,000 7,665,099 810 

790,000 4J87,203 450 
1,305,000 12,861 600 
1,800,000 5,744,182 682 
2,270,000 6,481,332 789 

730,000 5,910,570 735 
830,000 6,635,000 845 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

N arne Of Governmental Unit 

East Central College 

Union School District 

Ci ty direct debt 

Total Direct And Overlapping Debt 

Debt 
Outstanding 

$ 19,525,371 

34,482,692 

54,008,063 

$ 54,008,063 

Source: Infonnation was obtained by contacting the taxing jurisdiction. 

JUNE 30, 2010 

Estimated 

Estimated Share Of 

Percentage Overlapping 

Debt 

11.00 0/0 $ 2,147,791 

100.00 34,482,692 

36,630,483 

100.00 % 

$ 36,630,483 

The percentage applicable to the City is based on the jurisdiction's assessed value within the boundaries 

of the City. 
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CITY ()F UNION, NIISSOURI 
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARCIN 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Years 

2010 2009 2008 2007 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 

Assessed Value $164,402,083 160,820,001 156,024,858 140,910,603 130,564,088 111,244,514 106,1 01 ,009 103,647,853 100,008,804 89,378,997 

Debt Limit - 10% Of 

Total Assessed 
Valuation ~,440,208 16,082,000 15,602,486 14,091,060 13,056,409 11,124,451 10,610,101 10,364,785 10,000,880 8,937,900 

Amount Of Debt 

To Limit 

Total Bonded Debt 

Less: Amounts 
Available In Debt 

Service Fund 

T ota1 Amount Of 

Debt 
To Debt Limit 

Legal Debt $ 16,440,208 16,082,000 15,602,486 14,091,060 10,610,101 10,364,785 10,000,880 8,937,900 

Note: Bonded indebtedness is limited by Sections 95.111 and 95.120 of the Missouri Revised Statutes (1986) to 10% of the assessed value of taxable tangIble prope11y. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Median Public 
Fiscal Population Household Personal School Unemployment 

Income Income Enrollment Rate 

2010 9,714 N/A N/A 3,054 10.5 % 

2009 N/A N/A N/A 3,025 9.3 
2008 9,684 $ 49,064 $ 35,244 3,001 6.1 
2007 9,468 45,998 32,407 2,935 4.9 
2006 9,309 N/A 31,120 2,912 5.2 
2005 8,693 N/A 29,623 2,885 5.6 
2004 8,424 N/A 28,484 2,858 5.8 
2003 8,219 N/A 27,217 2,938 5.5 
2002 8,042 N/A 26,969 N/A 5.3 
2001 7,854 N/A 26,242 N/A 4.7 

Sources: 
(1) U.S. Census 
(2) Regional COlnn1erce and Growth Figures 
(3) Missouri Depmin1ent of Elen1entary and Secondary Education 
(4) U.S. Departlnent of Labor Statistics (not seasonally adjusted) 

Page 71 



CITY OF UNI()N, MISSOURI 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO 

2010 2001 
Percent Percent 

Of Total City Of Total City 
Employees Rank li:lllployment _~lllpl_Qye~s Rank Employment 

--'"-

School 369 1 9.78 % 380 1 10.11 % 

Esselte 361 2 9.57 522 2 13.89 

County 309 3 8.19 

East Central 202 4 5.36 251 4 6.68 

Rexan1 Containers 181 5 4.80 129 7 3.43 

Wa1-Mati Supercenter 166 6 4.40 240 5 6.39 

Showcase 111 7 2.94 160 6 4.26 

Alnerican Plastics 98 8 2.60 

The Children's 92 9 2.44 

Phanna 72 10 1.91 
Transaction 260 3 6.92 

Washington Fabricators 125 8 3.33 

Sunset Health 120 9 3.19 

Esselte Distribution 94 10 2.50 

1,961 51.99 % 2,281 60.70 % 

Source: City's database. 
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FUNCTIONS/PROGRAlVIS 
Administration 

City administrator 
Administrative assistant 

City clerk 
Deputy city clerk/accounting clerk 

Finance officer 

Custodian 

City attorney 

collector 

Engineering assistant 
Building insnector 

Economic 
Economic director 

Assistant 
Parks and Recreation Department: 

Parks and recreation director 

Recreation coordinator 

Assistant 
Maintenance - foreman 
Maintenance 

Public vVorks 
Public works director 
Street 
Street foreman 

Street equipment 
Street laborer 
Street mechanic 

2010 

1 

1 

2 

1 

3 
4 
2 

CITY OF UNION, lVIISSOURI 
FULL-TIIVIE EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERlYl\IENT EIVIPLOYEES BY F~NCTIONS/PROGRAIVIS 

TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2009 

1 

1 

1 

1 
2 

1 

3 
4 
2 

Full-Time Equivalent Employees As Of June 30 

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 

1 
1 

2 2 

1 1 

3 2 

4 2 

2 

---

2 

1 

2 

I 

1 

1 

2 

2 

2 2 

1 

2 r) 
L. 

1 

2002 2001 

2 2 

1 1 

2 2 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF Ur~ION, MISSOURI 
FULL-TIlVIE EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNlVIENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTIONS/PROGRAlVIS (Continued) 

TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Full-Time Equivalent Employees As Of June 30 
FUNCTIONS/PROGRL\IHS (Continued) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 

Water/vVastewater 

Water/wastewater 

vVater/wastewater foreman 

Field foreman 1 1 1 1 

Water/distribution operator 6 6 6 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

\Vater/\vastewater 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 

billing clerk 1 1 

clerk 

Police: 

Police chief 
Lt. assistant chief 

Police 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
Detective 2 2 2 1 
School resource officer 2 2 1 1 1 

control officer 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Patrol officer 10 10 9 9 9 9 9 8 8 8 
Police clerks 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2: 2 2 

Court 

Municipal court clerk 

judge 

Source: City payroll department records. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTIONS/PROGRAlvIS 

TEN FISCAL YEARS 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 
Police - patrol: 

Arrests 705 665 475 610 550 600 699 628 698 595 
Traffic citations 1,733 1,573 1,416 1,810 1,715 1,843 1,789 1,546 1,863 2,339 
Crime reports 4,034 3,991 3,846 4,187 3,723 3,541 3,729 3,463 3,722 4,057 
Accident reports 521 520 548 458 349 382 405 381 378 383 

Public works: 

Road repair - tons of mix 1,686 1,453 955 1,868 2,452 3,078 2,579 3,178 2,218 2,017 
Traffic control signs serviced 294 97 88 253 128 103 115 149 138 
Storm sewer grates and lids inspected 1,069 921 1,082 967 795 725 591 591 N/A N/A 

Parks: 

Acres mowed and maintained 187 187 187 187 187 187 187 187 187 187 
Trees and shrubs 8 4 3 25 100 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Engineering/building inspection: 

Rezoning 3 2 4 4 5 5 2 3 
Building issued 194 147 253 280 275 302 310 280 254 213 
Water permits issued 50 42 80 94 123 166 163 132 120 78 
Sewer permits issued 48 36 74 83 104 159 155 126 111 68 

Finance and 

Business licenses issued 655 583 684 639 607 578 555 541 N/A N/A 
Payroll checks issued 4,102 4,015 3,769 3,424 3,601 3,583 3,644 3,607 N/A N/A 
Accounts payable processed 2,216 2,598 2,494 2,302 2,308 2,376 2,536 2,443 N/A N/A 
Requests for public records 4 3 2 3 3 2 2 ~, N/A N/A .) 

licenses issued 50 46 45 36 33 30 31 N/A N/A N/A 

Source: City records - various departments listed. 
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CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI 
CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCTIONS/PROGRA}\;IS 

TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 
Police: 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Nlarked patrol 13 13 12 10 10 9 7 7 7 6 

works: 
Mil es 0 f streets 87.59 87.10 87.10 86.67 84.96 83.53 82.76 81.26 79.95 N/A 
Traffic lights signals 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

NIiles of se"wer 75.55 74.68 74.68 74.07 71.36 69.13 67.97 67.09 64.85 N/A 
3,905 3,975 3,975 4,054 3,794 3,631 3,584 3,452 3,241 N/A 
83.14 82.60 82.60 82.37 80.49 78.45 78.37 77.52 76.66 N/A 

16 16 14 13 12 12 12 12 12 12 

Parks and recreation: 
of parks 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 

Acres of parks 178 178 178 178 178 178 178 178 178 178 
Tennis courts 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Volleyball courts 2 2 2 2 

Basketball courts 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 
5 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 

Soccer fields 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 

Source: City depaliment records. 

Note: No asset H.H.HVUL are available for the Engineering/Building Inspector and Adlninistration functions. 
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